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" changes made in the old church from a simple uncluttered design to Victoriap
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\*St. Paul's Episcopal Church and its grounds mark the site of the firsgt

church of Augusta built in 1750 and the site of the old Fort Augusta, built

as protection against Indians.A® Called Fort Cornwallis during the Revolutiopary

War, its capture by "Lighthorse Harry'" Lee was a great blow to the English
cause. A Celtic cross on the church grounds marks the site of the old
fortress. '

"Ihe present structure is a 1916 copy of the old Federal style church
building of 1818 which was the third church on the site, The existing

building was planned and supervised by architect Henry Wendell with relatively

faithful adherence to {ghn_Lund}s original exterior design and with some
modifications of the old interior design.# (A copy of the old church
photograph is enclosed.)

This church of red brick in Flemish bond has three entrances:
one central projecting entrance section and two recessed ones on either
side. A coelonaded facade in the classical revival style with Doric columns
surrounds the entrances and completes the portico. The present. entrance
motif, slightly recessed in an arch and running almost the entire vertical
length of the brick wall, is made of double doors atop which is a variation
of the Palladian window. Outlining the tall arches, the windows of the
body of the church as well, is a type of spaced keystone or quoin work
rendered in light limestone.® Im comparison with an earlier photograph, the
fenestration over the double doors was noted as two slender Gothic windows
within the arch. The two part church steeple remains in overall view
unchanged. However details of cornices around the steeple's lower portion
as well as the absence of the louvres that appeared in the earlier church's
bell tower signify some change. 1In the presemt steeple:each of the four
sides of the lower brick portion is centered with a round window with globe
like tracery, surrounded also by the quoin work. N The top section is a
multi-sided bell tower with arches between Tonic pillars holding up a domed
roof. § Here the piers on which the pillars rest, as well as the dome and
pinnacle sizes, also suggest some deviation in detail from the earlier
building.
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The interior of the building has arched, vaulted ceilings and coupled
pilasters with unsuual stylized Corinthian capitals, The Palladian window
in the chancel over the altar is of stained glass as are the arched memorial
windows in the main body of the church. There are six of these windows on
each side, their arches springing from coupled pilasters in keeping with
the rest of the architecture. The stained glass memorial windows are said
to be valued at nearly one million dollars.

Comparing the interior of the building in 1877 and 1906 shows severall

33

gilt and mosaic ornaments. The present interior is simple and more in keepiing

with the:priginal 1818 church. However the presemt altar windows and chancpl

architectural details of pilasters-have more elaboration than the 1818

building photographed in 1877.
S ‘- (continued)
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7. Description (St. Paul's Episcopal Church, Augusta, Georgia)

The church furniture, including the altar, was saved from the
fire of 1916, and much of it is in use in the new church. The baptismal font
the only relic of the first church, is a simple Neo~classical pillar and bowl
brought from England in 1751.
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Here on the banks of the Savannah River General Oglethorpe in 1735
founded Georgia's second city as a fortress and Indian trading center up
river from Savannah. Here in 1750-51 the first St. Paul's Church and Grave
were located and dedicated "under the guns of Ft. Augusta" by the Reverend
Jonathan Copp, St. Paul's first minister, semt to Georgia by the Society
for the Propagation of the Gospel in Foreign Parts, Here are buried some
of the most notable people in Georgia history under tombstones and monument
with distinguished fumary architectural qua}ifications, But this place is
more than the site of the founding of Augusta and of the birth of Augusta
Episcopalianism. It is an inner-city garden spot - a history park, The
major feature of this park, the existing church building, is perhaps the
most significant aspect of the site. Dating from 1918 it is an early
example of careful, though not archaeological, reconstruction which
perpetuates the look of history amidst ancient trees and monuments near
the heart of a busy city.

,During the first fifty years of Augusta, this place was the site of
the only church in the area./It was a gathering place in case of Indian
attack, immediately outside the fort. (The law at that time required that
every male citizen over eighteen, when he attended church, to go armed with
a good gun or pair of pistols with at least six rounds of ammunition,) Al
births, marriages, and deaths were recorded at the church, and burials wer
performed in the churchyard, so that most &f the life of early Augusta
centered around St. Paul's, and most of the early Augustans were buried
in the adjoining cemetery.

When, in 1758, the Church of England was formally established in
Georgia by act of the Colonial Assembly, St. Paul's became the established
church in this part of Georgia. The colony was divided into eight parishes
which served as political @s well as ecclesiastical units. St. Paul's
was the district including the present Richmond County and several of the
surrounding counties.

and the territory renamed Richmond County. The church building, under the
guns of the fort whose name had been changed.to Cornwallis; was destroyed
by gunfire when the forces &f General Andrew Pickens and Lt. Col. "Lighthor

Haryy" Lee captured the fort. And in 1786, all church property was
confiscated by the State of Georgia. Episcopalians as holdovers from the
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Church of England, were persecuted. The glebe lands of the-—church wethgyldj_
and a small, very ordinary wooden building was constructed ﬁpr ﬁbnf,. _ t/
denominational services. On November 26, 1789, the first ﬁ@nk@éiving Day ~

service in Augusta was held in this building by the Rev. MrxX Palmer, an Epigfopal
clergyman. \q?;, RN

By 1818, opposition to the Episcopal Church had died down, and in that
year the Georgia legislature conveyed to the Trustees of the Episcopal Church
in Georgia the title to the original chmmchyard and cemetery of St. Paul's,
That same year, construction was begun on the third church building "94 feet
long, 64 feet wide, with 127 pews omthe ground floor not including the gallery,'
designed by John Lund, Ag¢chitect. This building heused St. Paul's for the next
98 years until the fire 6§ 1916 burned it to the ground.

A new church was begun on the old site as nearly like the old building
as possible in 1916, under the planned supervision of Henry Wendell. The
building was formally consecrated by Bishop Frederick R. Reese on May 7, 1919|

The present building of St. Paul's Episcopal Church is significant
in that it was an early 20th century attempt to make a faithful copy of an
early 19th century building. It came before the days of such monumental
archaeological undertakings as the Governor's Palace at Colonial Williamsburg|
Little is known about Henry Wendell, the supervising architect or of the
reconstruction procedure that he used, but a comparison of the results
with the enclosed photograph of the 1818 original verify that Wendeé22's 1916
work was quite close to the spirit and the fact of the destroyed ordginal.

The tombstones in the cemetery date from the very earliest days of the
colony and include later celebrities like General George B. Matthews, a
former governor, who died in Augusta on his way to Washington to horsewhip
President Monroe for a persdénal grievance; Commodore Oliver Bowen who capturpd
an English ship off Tybee Island and sent the gunpowder to Boston where it is
said to have bben used in the Battle of Bunker Hill; William Longstreet who
invented and operated a steam—driven boat on the Savannah before Fulton took
the "Clermont" up the Hudson. Many grave markers possess artistic merits
which add to theilr significance as monuments.

At the rear of the churchyard in the Oglethorpe Gardens is a Celtic cross
of granite erected by the Colonial Dames on the site of Fort Augusta-Cornwallis.
A Bamaged cannon at its foot was brought from England by General Oglethrope
in 1733 to be used at Fort Augusta.

St. Paul's, its surrounding property and gardens constitutes a park-
like area that adds to the livability and beauty of downtown Aggusta,
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